
DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 1 of 18 

 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION   2 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023 3 
3:30 P.M.  4 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, May 16, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. at the 5 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina. 6 

This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 7 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:  8 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BmltSFfp-S4 9 

 10 

[ATTENDANCE] 11 

 12 
Elected Body  13 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  14 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth  15 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  16 
Councilmember Ed Gray  17 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 18 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman  19 
Absent: None 20 

 21 
Town Staff  22 
Town Manager Catherine Crosby 23 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis  24 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  25 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 26 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 27 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  28 
Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry  29 
Human Resources Director Mary Beth Manville 30 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Director Linda Jones 31 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Coordinator Celeste Sherer 32 
Communications Director Stacey Galloway 33 
Compliance Manager Megan Simpson  34 
Chief of Police Jason Armstrong 35 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.  36 

 37 

 [COMMENCEMENT] 38 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BmltSFfp-S4


DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 2 of 18 

 

 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:33 p.m. and led the Pledge of 1 
Allegiance. He acknowledged National Police Week 2023 and thanked police officers for 2 
what they do for the Town of Apex, and thanked Chief Armstrong for everything he does as 3 
well.  4 

 5 

[AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 – HUMAN RESOURCES] 6 

Human Resources Director Manville gave a presentation of strategic plan updates 7 
for the Human Resources Department. 8 

[Slide-1] 9 

 10 

 11 

Assistant Town Manager Stone arrived at 3:34 p.m.  12 

 13 

[Slide-2] 14 

 15 

 16 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 3 of 18 

 

 [Slide-3] 1 

 2 

 3 

[Slide-4] 4 

 5 

 6 

Mayor Gilbert asked about workout times during the day for employees. 7 

Director Manville said something that was recently talked about in the Personnel 8 
Committee Meeting was for all employees to have the ability to take an hour out of their work 9 
day to workout. She said this is already available for Fire and Police. She said there is an 10 
option already for employees to take an hour to go to Wellness Programs. She said this may 11 
be another opportunity the town can provide another wellness initiative, but the HR 12 
department at looking at how this could be manager, and how continuity of services could 13 
still be preserved. 14 

 15 

 16 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 4 of 18 

 

[Slide-5] 1 

 2 

[Slide-6] 3 

 4 

Councilmember Zegerman asked for a timeline on the opinion survey. 5 

Human Resources Director Manville said she is meeting tomorrow with the N.C. 6 
School of Government to discuss it. She said the target date is getting it out by mid to late 7 
August.   8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 5 of 18 

 

[Slide-7] 1 

 2 

[Slide-8] 3 

 4 

 5 

Mayor Gilbert asked if the Peak Lifestyle Reimbursement includes childcare 6 
expenses.  7 

Director Manville said yes it does. She said it is up to $1,200 employees can use for 8 
various wellness-related expenses, including childcare. 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 6 of 18 

 

 1 

[Slide-9] 2 

 3 

 4 

[Slide-10] 5 

 6 

 7 

Councilmember Gray asked if the town has a formalized or informalized grievance 8 
process internally, and how those work. He asked how much the town is spending on 9 
professional development programs. He said he would like her assessment to whether or not 10 
it’s the appropriate amount. He said he wants to make sure the town is investing enough. He 11 
added that she could email him with some of these details, as well. 12 

Human Resources Director Manville said Human Resources has $25,000.00 13 
organizational development to spend on town wide things. She said there are training 14 
budgets within each department that are more position specific, but she doesn’t have those 15 
numbers on her right now. She said there is commitment from staff to utilize these programs. 16 
She asked Councilmember Gray if he would like the total number from the Departments.  17 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 7 of 18 

 

Councilmember Gray said he would like the total numbers from the Departments. He 1 
said it seems like cross-training is an important goal, and he wants to see if potentially more 2 
money needs to be directed towards these concerns. He said in 2025 the town is going to hit 3 
another wave, so if the town needs to start putting money into development sooner to take 4 
advantage of that next wave. 5 

Town Manager Crosby said departments are in their evaluation process of 6 
development planning. She said within departments there are certain required professional 7 
skills and certifications, but the town wants to take the next step and provide employees 8 
recourses for skills to allow them to be able to move up in their careers. She said staff would 9 
be taking a comprehensive look at training and development.   10 

Councilmember Zegerman echoed Councilmember Gray’s questions regarding 11 
grievances, and would also like that information.   12 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked what the hiring environment looks like for the town.  13 

Director Manville said she’s seeing resignations slowing down. She said the town 14 
currently has 50 open positions, and that number has been consistent. She said the open 15 
positions she’s seeing currently are either people retiring or being promoted. She said she 16 
doesn’t have exact numbers on voluntary separation. She added it can also be due to adding 17 
new positions, as 50 new positions were added last year, and close to that many are set to be 18 
added this year. She said getting total staffed is becoming difficult. She said the recruitment 19 
process takes about 60 days, and she is hopeful for it to be shorter. She said she hired 8 20 
people this past week, and it’s been consistent almost every two weeks with the town hiring 21 
almost in double digits.  22 

Councilmember Gantt said it’s common in government work for people to be 23 
promoted for being good at their job or for having been there a long time, and are not 24 
necessary a good fit for a managerial position. He said he didn’t know if this was an issue in 25 
Apex specifically or not, but wanted to know if there were things being done to consider this 26 
in hiring practices. 27 

Director Manville said it’s in both the public and private sector. She said that’s exactly 28 
what she wants to address in this process. She said promotions might have been based on 29 
seniority in the past but wants to address the new expectations. She said the town wants to 30 
ensure it promotes and hires people based on the right fit for the goals and community of the 31 
town, and not just considering seniority. She added that she wants they want to be clear with 32 
employees on what they can do to prepare for potential promotion opportunities. 33 

Councilmember Gantt asked if there were options for people who did excel at their 34 
jobs but did not want to manage people to still advance their careers. 35 

Human Resources Director Manville said yes, there will be career progression 36 
opportunities for people in this situation as well, and that they want the path to include 37 
opportunities for salary and responsibility in growth without necessarily adding on 38 
supervision roles.  39 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 8 of 18 

 

Town Manager Crosby said one thing the town has been doing the past two years is 1 
have someone come in and do a leadership challenge with the leadership team.   2 

Mayor Gilbert thanked Human Resources for their presentation.  3 

 4 

[AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 – DIVERISTY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION DEPARTMENT] 5 

Director Jones gave a strategic overview plan of the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 6 
Department.  7 

[Slide-1] 8 

 9 

[Slide-2] 10 

 11 

[Slide-3] 12 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 9 of 18 

 

 1 

 2 

[Slide-4] 3 

 4 

[Slide-5] 5 

 6 

[Slide-6] 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 10 of 18 

 

 1 

 2 

[Slide-7] 3 

 4 

 5 

[Slide-8] 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 11 of 18 

 

Town Manager Crosby said the Certified Welcoming Designation is something that 1 
is growing in the community and is an 18-month designation. She said there are specific 2 
criteria the town has to meet to get it. She said DEI training and development process is a 3 
tiered approach, HR is starting the process that all employees will have to go through 4 
training, then Director Jones will do the learning needs assessment. She said the town is 5 
possibly looking at bringing that as a part of the Employee Engagement Survey to get an 6 
understanding of what are the “blind spots” the town isn’t seeing as it relates to diversity. She 7 
said there will be requirements built into training.  8 

[Slide-9] 9 

 10 

Councilmember Zegerman asked how the DEI complaints would be different from 11 
formal complaints.  12 

Director Jones said it could be around protected classes or there could be non-13 
discrimination piece around protective classes.  14 

Councilmember Zegerman asked then why would it be sperate from another HR 15 
grievance process.  16 

Town Manager Crosby said there are protected classes that are separated out 17 
because the background finding process may be different. She said some organizations have 18 
it set up as part of HR but it can be done as a parallel investigation process. 19 

Human Resources Director Manville said the process will start with HR then DEI will 20 
be pulled in if needed. She said it’s important to know in HR to understand if a grievance is 21 
about discrimination, or if it’s a more management related complaint. She said they can work 22 
closely with DEI 23 

Mayor Gilbert thanked DEI Director Jones for her presentation.  24 

 25 

[AGENDA ITEM NO 3. – COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT] 26 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 12 of 18 

 

Communications Director Galloway gave a strategic plan update for the 1 
Communications Department.  2 

[Slide-1] 3 

 4 

[Slide-2] 5 

 6 

[Slide-3] 7 

 8 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 13 of 18 

 

Councilmember Gantt asked if her department works with Wake County and their 1 
Communications department to inform residents across the county versus municipal 2 
functions.  3 

Communications Director Galloway said yes, her department works with many of 4 
the local Wake County jurisdictions. She said one thing they’re worked closely with Wake 5 
County on is Emergency Communications, since a lot of that is housed with the county. She 6 
said they’re working to develop a new resident guide, that helps people moving into the area 7 
understand what the state, Wake County, and Apex governments all do and have 8 
responsibility and jurisdiction over.  9 

[Slide-4] 10 

 11 

Councilmember Zegerman said he doesn’t see communication plans around major 12 
projects.  13 

Communications Director Galloway said it’s coming in the presentation.  14 

Councilmember Gray asked how much communication she is having with the other 15 
departments.  16 

Communications Director Galloway said she talks to Police often and Parks and Rec 17 
has active communications with their department regularly.  18 

Councilmember Gray asked is there a consistency of messaging and communication.  19 

Communications Director Galloway said her team is working on that and she will 20 
talk about it more later.  21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 

 26 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 14 of 18 

 

 [Slide-5] 1 

 2 

[Slide-6] 3 

 4 

[Slide-7] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 15 of 18 

 

Mayor Gilbert asked why the Town of Apex is not having a Latino Festival. He said he 1 
has heard from others in the community that people think Apex is not putting it on.  2 

Director Jones said she had a meeting with Pastor Jose and he indicated that this 3 
years Latino Festival will be put on pause. She said that Pastor Jose wants to have the 4 
branding to be consistent and line up with Hispanic Heritage Month in September, and other 5 
functions didn’t align. She said it will resume next year.  6 

 7 

[Slide-8] 8 

 9 

[Slide-9] 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 16 of 18 

 

[Slide-10] 1 

 2 

Councilmember Zegerman commented on the town needing to keep the 3 
community engaged and informed, especially on bigger projects and reasons may projects 4 
may be stalled or delayed. 5 

Town Manager Crosby said the Community Engagement Team and 311 will fall 6 
under the Community Development Department. She said they will work with 7 
Communications, and this will be spearhead by Assistant Town Manager John. 8 

Assistant Town Manager John said there is a work session on this coming in June 9 
and she will provide more detail then.  10 

Councilmember Gray asked Director Galloway if her department is focused on all 11 
aspects of communication timelines. He asked would the communications department need 12 
more people to do the work.  13 

Communications Director Galloway said her department is finding their way right 14 
now. She said her department has grown from one to four and possibly adding a fifth in a 15 
short span of time. She said her department is still trying to figure out where the strengths are 16 
and how they play off each other, and that she is working on her role in developing the team. 17 

Councilmember Zegerman said its impressive how much ground that her team 18 
covers.  19 

 Councilmember Gantt said the growth of the Communications Team has been great 20 
since he first joined the Council in 2017. 21 

Mayor Gilbert thanked Communications Director Galloway for her presentation.  22 

 23 

[Agenda Item No. 4 – Apex Police Community Advisory Board (APCAB)] 24 

Compliance Officer Simpson gave an overview of what is the Apex Police 25 
Community Advisory Board and how its being incorporated with other boards. She said she 26 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 17 of 18 

 

did receive negative feedback about the name of the board and it has been changed to 1 
Police Advisory Board. She said a lot of questions came up for the background check 2 
regarding this advisory board and deferred to Chief Armstrong.  3 

Chief Armstrong said he had received feedback that a youth representative be 4 
present on this board. He said there is also a background check involved, and explained that 5 
someone’s criminal history does not make them ineligible to participate to work with youth. 6 
He said its to make sure there are not any conflicts that could be problematic for the town.  7 

Councilmember Gray said his concern with background checks is it could become a 8 
barrier to many people, and that he’s pretty certain most child sex offenders would try to stay 9 
away from police as much as possible. He said for many crimes, he is a believer that people 10 
should be able to participate fully in society if they have been convicted and already served 11 
their time. 12 

Councilmember Zegerman asked could the requirements be lightened to just check 13 
of a sex offender registry instead of pulling the background.  14 

Chief Armstrong said he could but he has challenges with that. He said he isn’t 15 
concerned about a case of someone serving if they had been previously convicted of theft. 16 
He said a scenario he would be concerned about is if one member on the board has been a 17 
victim of domestic violence, and they bring in somebody that has been arrested or charged 18 
for doing something like that. He said that would be the challenge this board would face. He 19 
said victims of domestic violence don’t always want to go to conviction. He said the 20 
background is not looking to exclude anyone based on having a prior conviction, but rather 21 
from a larger perspective to create a board that can work together comfortably and safely. He 22 
said people who serve on this board who have been victims of certain crimes and want to 23 
become an advocate should be protected by a system that other prevents other people from 24 
joining who may have been a perpetrator of what they went through. He said a criminal 25 
record in general would not negatively impact an individual from being able to join. 26 

 Councilmember Gray said he understands and appreciates that point, but that 27 
anybody can file a complaint for any sort of crime without it being fully vetted that may show 28 
up on a background check.  29 

Town Manager Crosby said it would be up to Council, and that with the exception of 30 
the police academy the training will be done during the week. 31 

Ms. Simpson said there has been added language to clarify the hours of training and 32 
for the two-year initial terms which will be staggered. She said the individuals will complete 33 
the training of what’s offered within the two years during those meetings.  34 

Councilmember Gantt asked if there was conflicting feedback.  35 

Ms. Simpson said yes, but she said most of it is formation, terms, and membership 36 
questions.  37 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 18 of 18 

 

Mayor Gilbert asked if there will be a process that the community can weigh in 1 
before anything is put in place.  2 

Chief Armstrong said it’s up to Council.  3 
Councilmember Gray said a public hearing for this would be a good idea. 4 
Councilmember Mahaffey and Councilmember Zegerman liked the idea of 5 

bringing it to public hearing and then voting on the board.  6 

 7 
[ADJOURNMENT]  8 
Mayor Gilbert declared the meeting adjourned at 5:02 p.m. 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 

Jacques K. Gilbert  13 
Apex, Mayor 14 

 15 
 16 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 17 
Apex, Town Clerk  18 
 19 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  20 
 21 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2023. 22 


